 UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR 

THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS

EASTERN DIVISION

Theresa C. Hill,



)







)



Plaintiff,


)







)

NO.


vs.




)

Judge







)



Yvette Phipps, a.k.a. Yvette Pitts,

)

Magistrate

Kenneth Washington,



)

Plaintiff Demands 
Anthony L. Mitchell,
 


)

Trial By Jury

Den Ray Mortgage Company,
     
)
Dennis Raimo, individually and as

)

President of Den Ray Mortgage Corp.,
)







)



Defendants.


)

COMPLAINT


The Plaintiff, Theresa C. Hill (“Hill”), by her attorneys, F. Willis Caruso, Michael P. Seng, Joseph Butler and Lewis Powell III of The John Marshall Law School Fair Housing Legal Clinic, complains of Defendants, Yvette Phipps, a.k.a. Yvette Pitts (“Phipps”), Kenneth Washington (“Washington”), Anthony Mitchell (“Mitchell”), Den Ray Mortgage Company (“Den Ray”) and Dennis Raimo (“Raimo”), as follows:

JURISDICTION


This action arises under the Fair Housing Act, 42 U.S.C. 3604 (a), (b), and (e) 3605, 3613, 3617, 1981,1982 and Supplemental Jurisdiction for state law claims of Common Law Fraud.
PARTIES

1. 
Hill is an African American woman, who is a citizen of the United States, and resides in Chicago, Cook County, Illinois.
2. 
Den Ray is a mortgage/management/insurance company, at all times relevant hereto, doing business at 10008 South Western Avenue, Chicago, Cook County, Illinois 60643.

3. 
Washington is an African-American male who On information and belief, was a real estate broker or salesperson, whose license was suspended and later, expired, and at all times was doing business at 400 West 76th Street, Chicago, Cook County, Illinois 60620.

4. 
, Yvette Phipps, a.k.a. Yvette Pitts is an African-American female who On information and belief resides at 9146 S. Clyde, Chicago, Cook County, Chicago, Illinois 60617.
5. Phipps acted as a “finder,” for Washington and others by seeking prospective African American buyers of homes in African American Neighborhoods.. 
6. Phipps worked for and acted as agent for Washington with offices at 400 West 76th Street, Chicago, Illinois and Washingtonacted as her agent.
7. Mitchell was the appraiser who appraised the property at 7113 South King Drive, Chicago, Illinois the house.  Mitchell submitted an insufficient and inaccurate appraisal which was discriminatory based on race for purposes of inducing Hill to purchase the house in a predominantly African American neighborhood and on information and belief  Mithchell resides at 6958 South Dorchester, Chicago, Cook County, Illinois 60637. 
FACTS

1. Hill’s income is limited to what she earns at the 
as a mail/copy clerk.

2. Prior to August 2001, Hill was living in a 2-bedroom apartment at 285 Congress Plaza, Chicago, Cook County, Illinois 60607, where she had achild, grandchildren and other children under her care.

3.  She was paying $500 per month in rent for the apartment.

4. In July of 2001, Hill was introduced to Phipps, who told her that she had access to homes for no money down and no more than $600 per month mortgage payments and expenses.

5. Hill told Phipps she could pay no more than $600 per month for housing.

6. In August 2001, Phipps called Hill to tell her she would show her a home that met the requirements of her income.

7. On or about August Hill again told Phipps that she could only pay $600 per month for housing.

8. Phipps told Hill that the seller of the house 
9. African-Americans.
10. On or about September 2001, Hill was told by Den Ray that Den Ray was the seller and held title of the house .

11. Phipps was an agent for Den Ray and Washington.

12. Phipps and Washington were agents for Den Ray.

13. The house was in need of substantial repairs, including but not limited to broken windows, correct installation of the furnace outlet vents, the repair of clogged laundry tub drains, a leaky roof, insufficient plumbing, and new siding.  
14. Den Ray, Dennis Raimo, Phipps and Washington individually and as agents for Den Ray represented to Hill that all necessary home repairs would be made before she closed and moved in. 

15. Hill met at the Den Ray office and was told she could obtain financing that would meet her needs of paying no more than $600 per month for living in the house. The $600 would cover all expenses including taxes and insurance.  
16. There were several attempts to close on the housebefore the closing that took place on December 6, 2001.

17. Throughout the process continually represented to Hill and she was continually advised by Den Ray and the agents for Den Ray that $60,000.00 were spent on the house and that all repairs would be or were made on the house before she closed and moved in.

18. Dennis Raimo, 
Yvette Phipps, and Washington. Were among the individuals who were at the closing.on the __ day of _____, ____. 

19. No one represented Hill at the closing. She was all alone and was not accompanied to the closing nor did she have any advice prior thereto. Nothing was explained to her or given to her at closing or any other time.

20. At the closing Den Ray and its agents represented to Hill that the repairs promised had been done and that the house was safe and in a livable condition.

21. Such representations were false.

22. At the closing, Hill did not read the closing documents She was told to sign papers and she did so. She did not know what she signed.
23. No copies of any of papers included as closing documents or any other documents relating to the purchase or the purported loan were given to Hill.

24. Hill moved into houseon or about December 6, 2001.

25. The represented repairs that Den Ray and its agents said would be done were not made before the closing and were not done when she moved in. The house was not in livable condition and constitutes a health threat to Hill and to the adjoining residence, 
26. Hill was taken by Washington and Phipps, the agents for Den Ray and the other parties at the closing, to get two cashiers checks from her account at Bank One for the closing.

27. On or about December 6, 2001, at the closing Hill was told by Phipps for the first time that her payments would be $808.73, instead of $600.00 or a total excess of what she could afford to pay or $2.504.76 for the first year.

28. This was the first time Hill was informed ofany increased monthly payments she was expected to make. 

29. Hill then stated to all present and in particular to Phipps, Washington and one of Den Ray’s agents that she could not pay this amount.  

30. The agents for Den Ray and the principals at the closing then represented to her that her payments would decreasewhen they could rewrite the loan in 6 months.

31. Den Ray and agents for Den Ray and offered to give her a check for $760.00 to supposedly help her make up the difference in payments during the first year.

32. As the loan was set up, Hill could not make the monthly mortgage payment of $808.73.

33. The first payment of $808.73 was due on February 1, 2002.

34. Hill was told that Den Ray would provide the insurance on the home and that funds were taken from the closing for such insurance. (
35. The home when Hill moved in was still in poor condition, the repairs represented to her by agents for and on behalf of Den Ray were not done as represented.

36. Den Ray did not make the repairs they represented they would do.

37. In addition, there was an unresolved water bill.

38. Hill has been forced to move outside of the home because it is not livable and is unsafe.

39. 
40. 
41. .

FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF
VIOLATION OF THE FAIR HOUSING ACT
42. Plaintiff, Theresa C. Hill re-alleges paragraphs 1-42 of the Complaint as if herein set forth in full.

43. This count is asserted brought pursuant to the Fair Housing Act, 42 U.S.C. § 3604 et. seq. against Den Ray, Raimo, Meneses, Mitchell, Washington and Phipps (hereinafter called sometimes “Defendants”) based on discrimination because on race.

44. Defendant’s actions have interfered with Hill’s right to the use and enjoyment of her property protected under the Fair Housing Act because of race.

45. Defendants made housing unavailable to Hill because of her race and the racial make-up of the neighborhood in violation of 42 U.S.C. § 3604 (a), and by discriminating in providing services in connection with the soliciting, brokering, appraising, maintaining, and provision services in connection with obtaining a home because of race, in violation of 42 U.S.C. § 3604(b).

46. Defendant’s actions have the intent, purpose and impact of creating separate and/or unequal patterns of access to credit based in whole or in part on Hill’s race and the racial make-up of the neighborhood.

47. Pursuant to 42 U.S.C. 3605, Defendants ‘predatory loan scheme’ adversely affected Hill by imposing terms and conditions on the loan; including large monthly payments and excessive interest rates and fees that have made it impossible for Hill to make her mortgage payments.  

48. The Fair Housing Act is violated because defendants knew that they were extending a loan to her that she could not pay.

49. Pursuant to 12 C.F.R. 100.125 (a) & (b), it is unlawful for any entity engaged in the purchasing of loans…to impose different terms or conditions for such purchases because of race…”

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff Hill requests that this honorable Court: 

a. Enter an order that the transaction has been rescinded and the transaction, the mortgage and all related documents are null and void.

b. Award actual damages; 

c. Award punitive damages.

d. Award attorney’s fees , costs and expenses;

e. Release all liens on the Hill Home; and 

f. Award such other and further relief as the court deems just and proper.

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF
COMMOM LAW FRAUD AGAINST DEN RAY
51.  Plaintiff, Theresa C. Hill, re-alleges paragraphs 1-50 of the Complaint as if herein

       and set forth in full. 
52.  Hill was inexperienced and unsophisticated in matters involving consumer lending.

53.  Conversely, Den Ray is a mortgage brokerage with extensive experience and sophistication in transactions involving residential mortgages.

54.  In light of the disparity in the commercial background and needs of the parties, and of the trust and confidence Hill placed in Den Ray to obtain mortgage loan financing on fair terms, Den Ray owed Hill a fiduciary duty.

55.  By undertaking the task of financing for Hill, Den Ray created an agency principal relationship and thus owed Hill a fiduciary duty.

56.
As her mortgage broker and agent, Den Ray had a fiduciary duty to procure financing for Hill with a home mortgage loan that was competitively priced and beneficial to them.

57.
As her mortgage broker and agent, Den Ray had a fiduciary duty to disclose all material facts relevant to the subject matter of the loan.

58.
As her mortgage broker and agent, Den Ray had a fiduciary duty to put the interests of Hill their principal, above its own.

59. 
Den Ray breached its fiduciary duties by collecting unreasonable fees for brokerage services, which it did not appropriately provide. 

60.
Den Ray breached their fiduciary duties by providing Hill with a high fee loan that it did not need or want and that provided it with little or no benefit. 

62.
Den Ray had the knowledge that its representations and statements that led to this loan transaction were false and misleading.

63.
Den Ray had a fiduciary duty to Hill.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff Hill requests that this honorable Court:
a.  Enter an order that the transaction has been rescinded and the transaction, the mortgage and all related documents are null and void;
b.  Award actual damages;

c.  Award punitive damages;

d.  Award attorney’s fees, costs and expenses;

THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF
COMMON LAW FRAUD AGAINST WASHINGTON AND PHIPPS

64.  Plaintiff, Theresa C. Hill, re-alleges and incorporates paragraphs 1-63 of the Complaint as if herein set forth in full.

65. Washington along with Phipps represented a sale of a home to Hill for an amount she could afford, with ‘no money down’.
66.  Washington and Phipps introduced Hill to Den Ray.

67.  Den Ray introduced Hill to Meneses.  

68.  Den Ray, as the seller, thru its agents, including Meneses, knowingly made false statements and misrepresented the loan terms in order to induce Hill into entering the mortgage.

69. Meneses obtained funding for Hill.  

70. Meneses set out to find funding for Hill without providing accurate information based on her income and her ability to purchase the home at 7113 South King Drive.  

71. At the closing, Hill was told she needed to pay more money and that her monthly payments would be higher than she was originally told.  
72. Hill stated that she could not pay this, but once Hill was at the closing, with no representation, Hill felt she had no alternative.

73. All participants in this loan transaction owed a fiduciary duty of care to Hill, and this duty was breached.

74. Hill has a limited education and because of this, had reason to rely and did in fact rely on the statements made by Defendants, because they are experienced professionals in the field of mortgage lending.

WHEREFORE, the Plaintiff prays for the following relief:

.

a. That the Court declare there was a total failure of consideration due to the 

poor condition of the home and consequently, the loan must be rescinded.

b. That the Court divest title in all Defendants and revest title in Hill.

c. That the Court order the mortgage discharged of record and also dissolve the mortgage as a cloud on the title.

d. That pending the final hearing and determination of this cause, that the Court issue a temporarily restraining order and preliminary injunction restraining and enjoining Defendants, their officers, agents, employees and all those persons in active concert or participation with them from taking any action against Hill.

e. That the Court appoint a receiver to protect the property and make the proper repairs to the home.

f. That the Court grant the plaintiff actual damages, punitive damages, a reasonable attorney’s fee, and costs;

g. That the Court grants such additional and further relief as may be just and proper.

FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

VIOLATION OF THE HUD CONCILIATION AGREEMTENT BY DEN RAY

75. Plaintiff, Theresa C. Hill, re-alleges and incorporates paragraphs 1-74 of the Complaint as if herein set forth and in full.

76. This Claim is brought by Hill to enforce provisions of Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (the Fair Housing Act), as amended by the Fair Housing Amendments Act of 1988, 42 U.S.C. § 3601, et seq.
77. This Court has jurisdiction over this action under 28 U.S.C. § 1331, 28 U.S.C. § 1345 and 42 U.S.C. § 3614 (b) (2).
78. Defendant, Den Ray, is a resident of the Northern District of Illinois.

79. The single family house at 7113 South King Drive in Chicago, Illinois, is a “dwelling” within the meaning of 42 U.S.C. § 3602 (b).

80. Hill moved into 7113 South King Drive on or about December 6, 2001.

81. On August 27, 2002 (amended November 6, 2002), Hill filed an administrative complaint with the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”), alleging that defendant Den Ray discriminated against her on the basis of race and sex in violation of sections 804 and 818 of the Fair Housing Act, 42 U.S.C. § 3604 and 3617. 
82. After the administrative complaint was filed but before a determination of reasonable cause or a charge was issued by HUD, defendant Den Ray and Hill entered into a Conciliation Agreement through the HUD conciliation process as provided for in 42 U.S.C. § 3610.  That agreement, attached as Exhibit C, became effective on September 11, 2003, when it was approved by HUD.

83. The Conciliation Agreement provided that its execution constituted a conciliation pursuant to the Fair Housing Act and its implementing regulation at 24 CFR § 103.310, 103.315, and 103.320.
84. The Conciliation Agreement provided that defendant Den Ray pay Hill in the amount of $1,000.00.

85. Subject to defendant Den Ray’s performance of its obligations under the Conciliation Agreement, complainant Hill agreed to waive, release and covenant not to sue defendant Den Ray with respect to any matters which were or might have been alleged as charges filed with HUD.

86. The Conciliation Agreement provided that the Secretary of HUD will determine whether defendant Den Ray has complied with the terms of the Agreement.

87.  On information and belief, the Secretary of HUD has determined that defendant Den Ray has failed to pay the sum required by the Conciliation Agreement.  The period during which the sum was to be paid has passed and no settlement has been received.   
88. On information and belief, the Secretary referred the matter to the Attorney General for enforcement of the Conciliation Agreement, pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 3610 (c) and 3614 (b) (2).
89. Defendant Den Ray’s breach of the Conciliation Agreement was willful and in bad faith.

90. HUD complainant Theresa C. Hill has complied with her obligations under the Conciliation Agreement in all respects.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, Theresa C. Hill, prays that the Court:

1. enforce the Conciliation Agreement and require that defendant Den Ray immediately undertake and complete the repairs according to the terms of the Agreement pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 3614 (d) (1) (A);

2. award actual and punitive damages to Theresa C. Hill, pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 3614 (d) (1) (B);
3. asses a civil penalty against defendant Den Ray to vindicate the public interest, pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 3614 (d) (1) (A).

Plaintiff further prays for such additional relief as the interests of justice may require.









Respectfully Submitted,
_________________

Attorney for Plaintiff

F. Willis Caruso

Lewis Powell III

The John Marshall Law School Fair Housing Legal Clinic

28 E. Jackson Blvd., Suite 500

Chicago, Illinois 60604

(312) 786-2267 Phone

(312) 786-1047 Fax

Atty. No. 33789

STATE OF ILLINOIS
)





)

COUNTY OF COOK

)

AFFIDAVIT

__________________, being first duly sworn on oath, deposes that affiant is the Plaintiff in this cause, that affiant has read the foregoing complaint, and that the facts stated therein, except as they may be stated on information and belief, are true and correct.









________________________

Subscribed and sworn to before

me this ___day of November, 2002.

____________________________, Notary Public

PAGE  
1

